United Nations Nations Unies

GENERAL ASSEMBLEE
ASSEMBLY GENERALE

UNRESTRICTED

A/AC18/8R.15
12 July 1948

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

INIERIM COMMITIFE OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
SUMMARY KECOED OF THE FIFTEENTH MEETING

Held at Leke Success, New York,
on Wednesday, 7 July 1948, at 11,05 a.m.



A/rCi18/SR.15
Pege 2

The CHAIRMAN éxplainqd. thet the Sub-Committees had not
yet completed their work rartly on account of the interruption caused
by the convening of the Special Assembly. However, this work was well
under vay., Sub-Committes 2 was consldering ite report to the Interim
Committee; Sub-Committee 3 had completed its two reports, and the
report of Sub-Committee 4 would be .availabie s00n.
He also drew the Committee's attention to thé Firet report of the
Secretary-General on crédentials of repre‘sentati"ves on the Interim Com-
ttee (document A/AC.18/42) and reminded those representatives who had
rot already submitted formal credentials to do so.
DRAFT FEFORT OF THE INTERIM COMMIUTEE TO THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY ON
THE CONSULTATION BY THE UNITED NATIONS TEMPORARY COMMISSION ON KOREA
(document A/AC.16/67)
Mr, ENTEZAM (Iran), Rapporteur, presented the draft report to

the Committee,

Without discussion, the Committee agreed unanimously to submit to

the Gencrel Assembly the report prepared by its Rapporteur on the ¢ n-

sultetion by the United Nations Temporary Commission on Korea.

THE PROBLEM OF VOTING IN THE SECURITY CCUNCIL: PRELIMINARY REFORT
AllD SECOND ReFORT OF SUB-COMMITIEE 3 TO THE INTERIM COMMITIEE
(documents A/AC,18/62 and A/AC.18/66)

The CHAIFMAN pointed out that the preliminary report of Sub-
Committce 3 contained the first three parts of its study on the problem
of voting in the Security Council while the second report consisted of

the lest two parts which conteined the methods considered by it for the

implementation of the conclusions reached with a view to liberalizing the

voting procedure in the Security Council. He reminded the Committee that

under the terms of resolution 117(II) the Committee was instructed to

report with its conclusions to the General Assembly not later than 15 July

1948,
/Mr. ARCE



A/AC,18/sR.15
Page 3

Mr. ARCE (Argentina), the Chairman of Sub-Committee 3,
rointed out that the second report recommended that the Assembly should
decide that, certain questions, as set forth in the report, should be
voted on through the procedure set forth in Article 27 (2) and should
be exempt from the provisions of peragraph 3 of that Article. It also
recommended that the question whether & mattér was substantive or pro-
‘cedural shouid be decided by the vote of any seven members of the Security
Council,

He hoped that the Sub~00mmittee's work would be a first step tovards
modifying, as far es possible, the voting procedure of the Security Council,
Complete improvement wes perhaps too much to expect for the present, but
every attempt should be made to obtein satisfactory resulis.

His delegation meintained its proposal for the convéning of & general
conference, under the terms of Article 109 peraegraph 2, to consider whether
the time had come for a revision of the Charter. The Chsrter could also
be amended under the terms of Article 108, but the procedure outline@
therein would not allow for any substantial éhange in the rule of unanimity
of the rermanent membexrs.,

It had beeﬁ hoped at San Francisco that the Charter would not need
to be revised for pdssibly ten years. Hovever, the Afgentine delegation
submitted thét present cifcumstances_warranted its being emended after
only three years. ThF general conferenée ﬁould'aerve as a forum for
discussion and oniy if a two-thirds majority'so wished, would the Charter

be altered.

Mr. ENTEZAM (Iren), Repporteur, formally presented the report
submitted by Sub-Committee 3 to the Interin Committee. He recalled that
the réport was composed of two separate sections: the first had been pre-
pared by Mr. Starnes of Canada, Repporteur of Subfcommittee 3, and
published as docwment A/AC.18/62. This section contained the first thres
‘parts of the report, i.e.: Part I, the method of work adopted by the

/Sub-Committee



A/AC.1B/SR.15
Pape b

Sub-Committee; Part II, giving a summary of the conclusions reached by
the Sub-Committee on the voting procedures to be used in connection with
four categories of possible decisions by the Security Council, as well
as the criterie on the basis of which these conclusions had been proposed;
and Part III, which contained s commented list of 98 kinds of decisions
thet could be taken by the Security Council in implementation of-tﬁe Charter,
or the Statute of the Intérnational Court of Justice. This list, prepared
by the Secretariat end amended by the Sub-Committee, was the basis of the
work of the Sub-Committee. |

The second section of the revort (document. A/AC.18/66) consisted of
its last two parts: Part IV, roviewed the proposed methods of implemen-
tation of the voting procedures suggested by the Sub-Committee; Paft v,
listed the recommsndations submitted for spproval to the Interim Committee
by the Sub-Committee, with & view to improving the voting procedure in the

Security Council.

The CHAIERMAN announced that the Committee would first proceed
with a generel discussion on the report of Sub-Committee 3. Ho suggested
that after the general discussion it would be preferable if the‘Committee
agreed to concentrate its attention on Part V, i.e. to the recommendations
which it is proposed that the Interim Committee submit to the General
Asserbly for the liberalizgtion of the voting procedure in the Security
Council with a view to improving the functioning of that orgen.

Parts I, II, IIT end IV of the report of Sub-Committee3 had already
been thoroughly studied by it and as the report had been puﬁlished quite
in advence of the meeting, all members had had time to familiarize thom-
selves with its contents.

Evidently, whenever one member would wish, during the consideration
of the various recommsndations, to refer to another part of the report

for further elucidation, he would be fully entitled to do sO.
‘/The Committee



A/AC.18/SR.15
Page 5

The Committee egreed ahd the Chairmen opened the general

discussion,

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Mr, SARFER (Turkey) said that the results of the Sub-Committee's
work were, in general, promising and if the recommendations of Sub-
Committee 3 could be put into effect as suggested they would constitute
a definite improvement of the Functioning of the Security Cc;uncil and
of the United Nations as e whole. 1In particular fhey would ensure the
effi_cient functioning of the Security Council with regard to the pacific
settlement of disputes.

The list of possible decisions for whidh it vas propoged that they
be taken in accordance with Article 27 paragraph 2 whether the matter
was procedural or not, constituted the first step towards the limitation
of the right of "veto"., He recalled that, the Sub-Conmit£ee had been
told that great end smell netions had each only one vote ahd that the
right of veto was a procedure tending to correct this inequality. That
view did not take into consideratioh the principle of the sovereign
equality of States and in any case, thé right of veto waé not the proper
remedy to any disproportion between States. It did rather establish a
greatexr dispi'oportion' gsince its use allowed one nation to oppose the will

.'of all the other nations united. - No State ;:an claim.such & privilege
neither by reason of its .population nor by reason 6f ite force. Moreover
it was not alwa&s the States with the largest ropulation which en,joyéd
the right of "veto".

i’c was true that the majority was not infallible but no one could
claim that the veto had only been used to correct its fallibility or
guarantee that it would only be used whenever such a deficiency would
exist when those who enjoy that privilege so oftén 6ppose each other.

It hed been stated that States who assumed the heaviest responsi-

bility for the maintenance of peace should at the same time have an

[overuhelming



A/AC.18/sR.15
Page 6

overvhelning voice in international affairs. In his opinion, such States
also were more in & position to disturb tho peace.. Further, the right
of veto hed not only becn applied in cases where heavy responsibility had
boeen involved,

It was particulerly satisfactory that the Sub-Committee had
recommended that a decislon with regerd to whether o gucstion was procédural
or not, should not be subJect to the rule of unanimity. The list of ques-
tions which, although not procedural, should not be subject to the rule of
uncninity, ves a useful onc, although it still needed to be complefed. As
he had stated on provious occacions, his delegation was in favour of the
total suppression of the "veto”. Hawever, it appeared that present cir-
cumstances unfortunately would not peruit such a step. What should be
ensurod was that the vet> could only be applied to decisioné that would
involve action and material responsibility.

Yet the Sub-Committee had made no recommendation on & certain number
of types of dccision and it naturally followed that in the opinion of the
Sub-Committee such decisions chould continue to be subjJect to the rule of
wmoninity of the permanent mwembers. Among these - and he wished to reserve
his right to return to thom when the Committee will teke up the detailed
discussion of the recommendetions of the Sub-Committee - the Turkish repre-
sentative stated that he considered that aﬁ least two types of matters
should not be subject to the rule of unanimity. First, the determination
of whi;ther a question related to the domestic Jurisdiction of a state'which
d4d not by itself involve any decision for action and was confined to the
statément of & rule, or to the creation of a precedent of international law,
should be mede by a simple majority of seven_votes, or, whenever possible,
should be referred to the International Court of Justice. Second and for
the same‘reason, that should also be the case with respect to the simple

determination of the existence of a threat to the peace, & breach of the

peace or en act of aggression. The Turkish representative based his

opinion on the following conslderations:
/(2) Such a






AfAC.18/SR.15
Page 8

Jonkheer SNOUCK HURGRORJE (Nethew}.mﬂs) expressed appreciation

of the thoroughness of the Sub-Cammittes?!s work; he considered its report
the nost exheustive and fundsmentel stwdy yét mede of the subject.

The Notherlands Govermﬁent iiad ,\at the San Francis:cc Converence,
opposed the rule of uneninity as vioiating the pﬁnciple of equallty of
notions; its finsl accept:&nce of the rule had been on the understanding
thet 1t would ve useg}z:?dere.tion and only in ceses of fundamental importance.
In view of the subsequont cbuse of the rule; the Netherlands delegation
would wolcome any attermpt to modﬁfﬁ %he situation; it would like to ses
the veto limited by carmon consent to cases ’where the fundamental rights
of morbers were ~t stake.

The letherlands delegation considerad the report of Sub-Commithes 3
as & valu~ble contritution toward limitation of the veto, and agreed in
generel with the xeport ané 1ts recomenda‘t;ions. In particular the Netherlands
delegetion andorsed the roconmendations of the rep'ort concerning the admission
of new Members to the Unilted Hatlons, considering it undesirable that a
country applying for membership end fulfilling all the.requirements could
be blocked frcm membership by the opposition of & single member of the
Security Council. The delegatlon also warmly suppqrted the proposal that

decinions on the basis of Chepter VI of the Charter, whether procedurael

or not, should be teken by a majority of eny seven merbers.

Mr. SOUZA GOMES (Brozil) re-affirmed the position taken by his
Government et Sen Francisco on the question of the rule of unanimity, e
position which it hed coneistently meintained since that time. The
Brozilien Goverrment had slways opposed the rule, clthough the delegation
hed voted in favour of its adoption in en effort to arrive at a construc-

tivo soluticn of the prodblem; in so voting, the delegation of Brazll had

pede plein its conviction that the Chartor must be revised within a glven

) unaninity.
time end without boing subject to the rule of J / Witn the



A/AC.18/SR.15
Page 9

With the feeling that the powers of the naticms should be in pro-
rortion 4o thelr respansibilities in/‘hbe maintenance of peace vand security,
the delegation of Brazil hed supported®the allocation of certain privileges
to the Groat Powers, Two yeurs® experdance in the Security Council, Jowever,
had made 1% clsar that the Privilege of the voto had been abused; instead
of fulfilling its interled function as a means of Btrengﬁhening solidarity
among the Greet Powerg, ;t had becdﬁp & nsgative element used to permit one
fo the Greet Powers to block a decision in the. face of the will of the
mejority., The Brazilisn delsgation was of the opinion that the rule of
unanimity must be limited and made more flexidble if it wers to play the
role for which it had been:inkended. |

The Brazilian delegation felt that the wecommendations formulated by
Sub-Cormittee 3 represented substentiel progress téﬁard perfecting the voting
procedure of the Securlty Council, Of particulsy fmportence were ‘the recom-
mendation that declsions on the procedural . or non-procedural nature c;f a
gquestion should be taken ﬁy a vote of any peven membors of the Council,
end the recommendation for the elimination of the right of veto in.all
decisions relating %o the pacific settlement of disputes.

Mr, Souza Gomes drew ettention also 40 the opinlon expressed by various
‘members of the Sub-Committee to tﬁe effect that in case of disagreement on
matters involving legel questions, the Securlty Council should request an

"advisory opinion of the International Court of Justice. The Brazilian
delegation hoped that the Interim Cormittes would formulate 1ts recormenda-
tion_s with a view to encdumging more frequent requests of the sort by the
Council under the terms of Article 96 of the Cherter.

The delegation of Brazil was well aware of the difficulties which would
face the Council in the adoption of the Sub-Cormittee's recommendations., It
would be necessery for all the Permanent Members to demonstrate their under-

stending end goodwill, if they desired to aid in accomplishing the eims of

4hs. United Nations. .
/ Mr, BSU



A/AC.18/SR.15
Page 10

Mr. HSU (China) thought the Sub-Cormittes should be congratulated
on vhet it hod done; he noted, hovwever, that its achievenent was neceassrily
inceoplete, owing to the fact that its members could act'only‘on the basis
of 1ngtructions fron their Govornments and consequentiy could not go beyond
certain linits. |

The representative of thna observed‘that the exlsting wrong did not lie
with tho Chertor or with tho San Francisco Statemenﬁ, which granted‘the veto
rover to tho permonent membors; ?he wrong lay‘in the abuse bf the power. Buf
tho powor grented in the Staterent differed ffom that granted in the Charter,
in that the forror wvas condit#oned in two weys, -- first, by a lis£ of matters
terned procecdursl, and socond, by & declearation that the Chartef itself con-
toired on indicotion of the epplicetion of the voting'brocedure for matters
not licted. Thus the Mormbers of the Organizatisn had the means at theif
discponcl to correct abusos of the power claimed in the Statement, if not of
thet grented in the Charter. |

It wes evident that Recormendation 1 of the Sﬁb-Committeo did not cover
£ll tho coses that it should. The problen of the abuse of the veto powef in
decisicns on whether a nattor is procedural or not would never be solved
until tho nerbers of the Council guided thelr voting not only by the list of
items in Recommendation 1, but also by the principle underlying that rocon-
cendaticn, -- 1,e., by interpretation of the Charter.

Tho representative of China callod attention to two outetanding achievement
of tho Sub-Cornitteo. First, it had ﬁistinéuishod botwoeh interpfotation of

tho Cherter ond ogrecment anong the permenent members, as methods of liberalizing

the voting proceduro in the Council. Seoccnd, 1t had formulated criteria, fron

indicctions in the Chorter 1tsclf, for the dotermination of possible decisions

cn which the method of interprctation of the Charter should apply. Through

t
these achievomonts o nunber of possible docisions in which tho rulo of unaninity

wos never intondod to apply pight bo romovod fron thoe dangor of abuso of that

Tate. / Tho Chinoss



A/AC.18/SR.15
Page 11

Tho Chinose delogation 5uPP6rted tho report of tho Sub-Cormitteo, as
tho bost rosult that could be achieved under tho ‘prosent‘circumstancos, If
d :
adoptod by the Interinm Cormittos and tho Gonoral Assombly, 1t would constituto

a dcfinito stop forward towerd tho goal in viow.

Mr. FABREGAT (Uruguay) praisod the report of tho Sub-Cormittoe
ag boing conciso and full. His dologation felt, howovor, that it did not
consider tho wholo problom, sinco 1t did not givo sufficiont study to ;t',ho
historical bockground of tho quostlon. The problon was an ormiproscnt and
highly controvorsial onc; the volune of criticisn against tho rulc of unanimity
called for an oxhaustive study of tho quostion by the Orgenization itsolf.

Tho dologation of Uruguay v}as of tho opinion that othor itoms nust bo
takon into considoration in tho Intorin Cormittec's dobate on the quostion,
oven though the Cormittee was not concqrnc;d with rocormicnding tho ebolition
of tho veto or opecific ways of modifying tlio Chertor. Tho historical
background of tho quostion wont back further than tho San Frencisco Conforence;
1t could be tracod back to Durbarton Ozks and even to the Covenant of the
League of Notions. The fundonental positions of Momber Governments on the
rule of unaninity had not chonged since thoy had seon it in operation. Thore
wore z;.;Lso othor voting procodures in tho Seourity Council, bosides tho veto
and the "doublo veoto", which chould be studicd as.intogral parts of the
sane problen; for oxamplo, thé passage of cortain resolutions hed beon
obstructed by abstontion in a vote.

It would thoreforo bo nocessary to study the report of the Sub-Cormitteo

in dotall, iton by iten, end %o obtain clarification on certain points.

Mr. CORREA (Ecuedor) comsidered thot the work of tho Sub-Cormitbee
had beon systenetic ond constructive ond that its recormendations constituted
an inportont otep toward linitation of the right of "voto". His delegation

particularly welcomed tho recormendations in the fourth cotogory undor
/(d) paragraph 11



A/AC.18/5R.15
Page 12

(a) poragreph 11 of tho Proliminary Roport (docunent A/AC.18/62), dealing
with decicicns which should de adopted by tho voto of finy ccvon nenbors éf
tho Counci{; if the pornconent rombere accepted cuch d 1list as that recormonded
undor paragrapk 2 of Part V (A/AC.18/66), irmportant progrees would have bcen
cado.

Tho dologotion of Ecuador agrood thet the list of poseible decieions
drown up by tho Sub-Cormitteo to bo taken by & vﬁfc of ohly_scven neubors
w2t not complote; 1t chould be graduelly supplenmented wiéh other poooible

decisiong of tho Sccurlty Council and particularly those on which no recon-

rcondation hed beon node.

The CHAIRMAII ennounced that the Cormittee would neot cgein the

pooe doy at 2.30 p.n.

Tho meoting roso ot 1.00 p.m.






